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MeGREGOR W. SCOTT

United States Attorney Fl

FOBERT M. TWISS

CAROLYN X. DELANEY

Assistant United States Attorneys Hﬂ?_lﬁ 2004

501 I Street, 10th Floor
Sacramento, California 95814

: _ ERK, U5
Telephone: (916} 554-27&7 ?ﬁﬂ#b""‘ﬁ%mr me

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE

EASTERN DISTRICT COF CALIFCENIA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
CR. Mo. 5-04-435 WBE
Flaintiff,
GOVERMMENT 'S MOTION TO UNSEAL
INDICTMENT

V.

WALTER A. THOMPSCH,
JOSEPH EANISTER,

Defendants .

RS S S —

The United sStaktes, by and through its undersigned counsel,
Lereby moves to unseal the above captioned indictment. The
indictment was returned on November 17, 2004 and ordered sealed
by the Honorable Peter A. Mowinski until either the arrest of
both defendants, or the initial court appearance of the first
defendant, whichewver should occcur first.

Defendant JOSEFH BANISTER was arrested this morning, and
will make his initial appearance thisg afterncon at 2:00 pm. It
is necessary to provide copies of the indictment to the pre-trizl
gervices office and the Federal Defender in advance of the 2:00
calendar.
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Accordingly, the United States now moves to unseal the
indictment for all purposes.
Dated: Hovember 18, Z004

McGREGOR W. SCO0TT
United States Attornevy

Bt n s
BY: ] e |k
ROBERT M. TWISS
CAROLYN K. DELANEY
Assistant U.5. Attorneys

ORDER
IT IS 50 ORDERED. The indiefment is UNSEALED for all
purposEes. E
Dated: Hovember 18, 2004 h
%
FETER A. WINSEIL
Unit=d Staktes Magiskrakbte Judge
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e File Copy
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
V.
JOSEPH BANISTER WARRANT FOR ARREST

Case Nomber CRS=0) 4-&435 WBS

To: The United States Marshal
and any Authorized United States Officer

YOU ARE HEREBY COMMANDED to arrest JOSEPH BANISTER SEALED

and bring him or her farthwith to the nearest magistrate judge to answer a(n}

¥ indicrment T Information T Violation Pedition T Other

chamging him or her wath (boef description of offense)

Conspiracy to Defrasd the United States

in viglation of Title |§. United States Code, Sectlonis) a7
L Mena-Sanchez Deputy Clerk
Mame of Issuing Officer Title of Issuing Oificer
Original signed by L Mena-Sanchegz Movember 17, 2004 - Sacramento, CA
Signature of Issuing Cfficer Diaee and Lecation
Bail fixed 5t 3 No Bal by  Magisirate Judge Dale A, Drozd
RETURN

This warranl was received and executed with the arrest of the above-named defendant

De Rezerved Mome g Title af Armedting Officer

Limte ol Arresl Sagmature af Ameszing Odficer
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McGREGOR W. SCOTT
United States Attorney
ROBERT M. TWISS
CAROLYN K. DELANEY

I I, ma
Assistant United States Attorneys —— A w3
501 I Street, 10th Floor S E : AT TA
Sacramento, California 95814 i ﬂtfﬁi 04

815 rmimen e

Telephone; ([(%16) S554-2767

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE
ERSTERN DISTRICT OF CALIFQRNIA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, CRS-04_-0435 W8S
CR. No.

Plaintiff,

GOVERNMENT'S MOTION TO FILE

INDICTMENT UMNDER SEAL

V.

JOSEPH BANISTER,

)

)

)

)

)

WALTER A. THOMPSON, ]
|

Cefandants, )

!

The United States, by and through its undersigned counsel,
hereby moves te file the indiectment in the above capticned case
under seal until the arrest of both defendants, or the £irst
court appearance of either defendant, whichever comes first.

Defendant JOSEPH BANISTER was emploved as a Special Agent in
the Criminal Investigation Division of the Intermal Revenue
Service from 1953 until February of 1999, at which time BANISTER
was asked by the Internal Revenua Service to resign his position.
Since that time, BANISTER has repeatedly challenged the authority
of IRS Speclal Agents to investigate criminal tax cases and their
right to exercise federal law enforcement authority.
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Special Agent Paul Howard of the Internal Revenue Service
has advised the undersigned attorney for the United States that
BANISTER received extensive training in the use of firearms while
he was employed as an IRS Special RAgent. Epecial Agent Howard
alsc hag advised the undersigned the BANISTER was a firearms
instructor for the IRS while he was employed as a Special Agent.
Based upon BANISTER's training and his experience as a firearms
instructor, it is reasonable to assume that BANISTER is very
comfortable with firearms, and is an expert in their use.

If convicted of the offenses charge in the indictment,
defendant BANISTER is facing imprisonment for several years. As
a former federal law enforcement ocfficer facing the possibility
of going to federal prison for an extended time, there is a
posgibility that BANISTER might not exercise the best judgment
when confronted with arrest if he is aware of it in advance.
Accordingly, the United States moves to file the indictment under
seal until the arrest of defendant BANISTER, or the first
appearance of co-defendant THOMPSON if that should occur first.

Defendant WALTER A. THCOMPSCM was the respondent in case
number CIV S§-03-1532 FCD which was a petition to enjoin him from
failing to deduct, collect, account for, and turn over to the
United States Treasury the correct amount of income tax, soclal
security tax (FICA) and Medicare taxes from the employees of his
sole proprietorship business known as CENCAL SALES in Redding,
California.

on or about September 12, 2003, THOMPSON was ordered by the
Honorable Frank C. Damrell, Jr. to file the required Employers'

Quarterly Tax Returns, Forms 941, with the Intermal Revenue
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Service, and to deduet, collect, account for, and turn aver the
correct amount of income tax, social security tax (FICA) and
Medicare taxes from the employees of his business.

THOMPSON failed to comply with the Court's order, and on or
about January 26, 2004, the United States filed a petitien to
hold THOMPSCN in contempt. ©On or about March 5, 2004, an arrest
warrant was issued for THOMPSON and he ultimately was arrested
and brought before the Court. oOn or about April 16, 2004,
THOMPSON refused te comply with the court order, and he was
imprisoned for civil contempt.

On or about April 20, 2004, the Honorable Frank C. Damrell,
Jr. ordered TEOMPSON released based upon his promise to comply
with the order. After release, THOMPSON gave notice of his
intent to not comply with the court order, and on or about May 7,
2004, the United States filed a motion to have THOMPSON arrested
again and brought back before the Court. The order issued on or
about June 25, 2004, and THOMPSON was returned tc Court, and on
or about August 11, 2004, he again refused to comply with the
court order and was jailed for contempt.

THOMPSON remained in custody until in or about October 28,
2004, at which time the Heonoarable Frank €. Damrell, Jr. found
that further incarceration would net cause THOMPSON to comply
with the court crder, and ordered that he be released.

Special Rgent Shawn Breslin of the Internal Revenue Service
hag advised the undersigned atterney for the United States that
he was advisged by the United States Marshal whe arrestad
defendant THOMPSCH ﬂn.the second instance discussed above that

THOMPSCN was very animated during the arrest, and that the
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{ Marshal had to consider using pepper spray to subdue him. As a

result, defendant THOMPSON can be expected to resist being
arrested pursuant to the indictment if he is aware of the arrest
in advance. RAccordingly, the United States moves to f£ile the
indictment under seal until the arresgt of both defendants or the
initial appearance in court of the flrst defendant,

Dacted: Noverber 17, 2004

McGREGDR W. ZCCOTT
United Statas Attorney

By: ﬂaiiuﬁ*T¥:::;£ﬁ§k

ROBERT B. TWISS
CRAROLYN K. DELANEY
Assistant U.S5. Attorneys

ORLCER
IT IS 50 ORDERED. The indictment 1is filed under seal, and
ghall remain under seal until the arrest of both defendants or
the initial appearance in court of the first defendant, whichever
ghould occur first.

Dated: November 17, 2004

T o
United States Magistrate Judge
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MoGREGOR W. S5COTT
United States Attorne 3
ROBERT M. TWHISS g FF ‘Ea
CAROLYY K. DELANEY

Assistant United States Attorneys NG Do

501 I Street, Suite 10-100 -

Sacramento, California 55814 LU E TISTRICY COURT
Telephone: (516} 554-27687 :ﬁﬂ AN DS 13,07 OF CALIFORNIA

[eoaTy 2 TR

IN THE UNITED SETATEE DISTRICT COURT FOR THE
EASTERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

cr. No, CRS-04-0435 W8S

VIOLATIOMS: 18 TF.5.C. § 371~
Cﬂnﬂpiraci; 18 U.S8.C. § 287-
False Claims Rgainst {nited
States (Two Counts); 26 U.5.C.
§ T206(1) - Filing False Tax
Feturns; 26 U.5.C. § T72068(2})-
Riding and Assisting the Filing
0f False Tax Returns (Three
Counts); 26 U.5.C. § 7202~
Willful Failure to Withhold
and Pay Taxes (10 Counts)

UNITED SETATEE OF AMERICA,

Flaintiff,

V.

JOSEPH BANISTER, and
WALTER A. THEOMPEON,

Defendants.

el Bl e e el B g gl T B i ! o S

IHEDRDICIMENT

COUNT ONE: [18 U.S.C. § 371 - Conspiracy to Defraud
the United States]

The Grand Jury charges: SEA]-_JED

JOSEPH BAMISTER and
WALTER A. THOMPSOMN,

defendants herein, as follows:

At all relevant times,
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1. Defendant WALTER A. THOMPSON has been a resident of
Shasta County, California, and has cperated a sole proprietorship
business known as Cencal Sales, which hae conducted business in
the State and EBastern District of Califormia and elsewhere.

2. pefendant JOSEPH BANISTER has been a resident of Santa
¢lara County, California, and has been engaged in business as a
certified public accountant ("CPA"), conducting business in the
Northern and Eastern Distriet of California and elsewhere.
pafendant JOSEPH BANISTER was employed as a Special Agent in the
Criminal Investigation Division of the Internal Revenue service
between Movember, 1993 and February, 1933.

3. rCencal Sales {"CENCAL") was a sole proprietorship
business owned and operated by defendant WALTER A. THOMPSON.
CEMCAL wae engaged in the manufacturing and sales of aviation
£light bags. At all times material to this case, CENCAL had a
number of employvess whe worked for CENCAL in return for wages
paid on an hourly basis. Most of the employees who worked for
CENCAL were seamstresses, production managers, or cffice workers.

II. INC JECT TICH

4. Gross income subject teo taxation ie defined in the
Internal RBevenue Code, Title 26, United States Code, to include
a1l income from whatever scurce derived, including, but not
limited to, several listed items, including, but not limited to:
compensation for services, including fees, commigaions, f£ringe
benefits, and similar items; gross income derived from business;
gains derived from dealings in property; interest; rents;

royalties; dividends; annuities; distributive shares of partner-

-3
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ghip gross income; and income from an interest in an estate or

Eruask.

5. Income is taxed to the party whe earns it. The entity
which earns income, either an individual, partnership or other
entity, cannot aveid taxation by entering inte a contractual
arrangement whereby the income is diverted to some other person
or entity. The income tax conseguences under the Internal
Revenue Code depend upon the substance of the transaction, not

Ehe form,
III. EMPLOYMENT TAXES

&. Employers, including the owners of sole proprietorships,
are required to file U.S. Employers' Quarterly Tax Returns, Form
941, reporting the names and social security numbers of the
employees who received salary and wages during the tax period,
and the ampunt of wagesz and salary which esach employee received.
Employers are reguired to deduct, collect, account for and pay
cver to the United States Treasury the proper amcount of income,
Federal Insurance Contributions Act (FICA) (Social Security) and
Medicare taxes.

7. Employers are reguired to caleculate the correct amount
of income tax to withhold from the employees®' pay based upon the
amount of money earned, the exemptions claimed and the tax rate
which iz applicable. In addition, employers must withheld FICA
tax in the amount of €.2% of wages and salary, and Medicare tax
in the amount of 1.45% of wages and salary.

8. In addition, there are FICA taxes of €.2% of wages and
galary and Medicare taxes of 1.45% of wages and salary imposed

upon the employer. Accerdingly, each fiscal quarter, an employer

3
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ﬂis required to file a U.S5. Employers' Quarterly Tax Return, Form
541, reporting to the U.S. Treasury the total amount of wages and
salary paid, and paying to the Treasury the total amcunt of
income taxes withheld from the employees' pay, plus both the
employaas' portion of FICA taxes and the employer's pertion of
FICA taxee, in the total amount of 12.4% of wages and salary, as
well as employees' and employer's shares of Medicare taxes in the
total amount of 2.90% of wages and salary.
IV. THE CONSRIRACY

i 3. Between on or about January 1, 2000, and continuing
thereafter until on or about January 15, 2003, in the State and
Bastern District of California, and elsewhere, defendants JOSEDH
BANISTEER and WALTER A. THOMPSON did unlawfully, willfully and
Hknﬂwingly conBpire, combine, confederate and agree with each
other, and with divers other perscns, both known and unknown to
the grand jury, to defraud the United States by impeding,
impairing, obstructing and defeating the lawful Government
functions of the Interpal Revenue Service of the U.S. Department
HDE the Treasury, in the ascertainment, computation, assessment
and collection of the revenue, to wit: income, social security
and Medicare taxes. There were two objectives to the conspiracy
te defraud the United States:

a. To impede, impair, cobstruct and defeat the Internal
Revenue Service in the ascertainment, computation, assessment and

collection of the income, social security and Medicare taxes

which were due and owing from the employees of CENCAL for the
period July 1, 2000, through December 31, 2002: and

b. Te lmpede, impair, obstruct and defeat the Internal

4
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Revenue Service in the ascertainment, computaticn, assessment and
collection of the income, scocial security and Medicare taxes
which were due and owing f£rom the owner and operator of CENCAL,
to wit, defendant WALTER A. THOMPSON for the tax years ending
December 31, 19%&, 1997 and 1998.
V. IEE SCHEME TCO DEFRRUD

10. The nature of the scheme to defraud the United States
wag to remove the employeess of CENCAL from the taxpayer reclls by
ne longer withholding any income tax, FICA tax or Medicare taxes
from their wages and salaries; by not filing Employers' Quarterly
Tax Returns, Form %41, reporting the payment of wages and salary
to the employees; and by not providing the employeas or the
Internal Revenue Service with annual wage and/or other income
gtatements, Forms W-2 or 109%. As a result of the actions of the
defendants, deozens of taxpayers who were reguired to file tax
returns and raport their income either failed te file returns, or
filed returns but f£ailed to report a substantial amount of their
income.

In addition, defendant JOSEPH BANISTER prepared and
defendant WALTER A. THOMPSON signed and filed with the Internal
Revenue Service false and fraudulent Amended Individual Income
Tax Returns, Forms 1040X, for WALTER A. THOMPSCON and his spouse
for the tax years ending December 31, 19%6, 1997 and 1538, on
which returns defendants BANISTER and TEHOMFSON reduced to 0
dollars the information on the original returns on which
defendant THOMPSON had reported substantial gross income, taxable

income and income taxes.
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VI. MANNER AND MERNMS BY WHICH THE
CONSPIRACY WAS CRRRIED QUIT

The manner ahd means by which the conspiracy was sought to
be accomplished included, among others, the following:

11. Defendant WALTER A. THOMPSON cperated CENCAL, a sole
proprietorship located in the vicinity of Redding, California.
CENCAL manufactured and sold aviation flight bags. There were
approximately 25 employees of CENCAL, most of whom were seam-
stregses whe manufactured the bage. In addition, there were a
number of production managers who oversaw the work of the
seamstresses, and a small number of ocffice workers. All of the
employees were hourly wage employeses.

12. Prier te July 1, 2000, all of the employees of CENCAL
had their personal income taxes withheld from their pay, along
with their share of the FICA and Medlcare taxes. At the end of
each calendar year, each employee of CENCAL received a Form W-2
reporting the total amount of income which he/she earned, and how
much federal and state income tax, FICA tax and Medicare tax had
been withheld from his/her pay. A copy of the W-2's were
provided to the Internal Revenue Service by CENCAL.

13. ©On or about July 21, 2000, defendant WALTER A. THOMESON
called an "all hands" meeting for all the employees of CENCAL.

At that meeting, defendant THOMPSON advised the employees of
CEMCAL that it was his opinion that the money which he paid to
them as compen-sation for their labor on behalf of CENCAL was not
"income" within the meaning of the internal revenue laws and that
ne federal income taxes were due and owing as a result of his

payment of the compensation to them. Defendant THOMPSON advised
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the employees that effective immediately as of that meeting, no
federal income taxes or FICA and Medicare taxes would be withheld
from their pay.

14. On or before July 21, 2000, defendant WALTER THOMDPSOM
instructed his bockkeeping, accounting and other office perscnnel
te stop witkholding federal income taxes, FICA taxes and Medicare
taxes from the compensation paid to the employess of CENCAL.

Defendant TEOMPSON also told the bookkeeping, accounting and

F'Dthfr office perscnnel to stop filing U.S5. Employers' Quarterly

Tax Returns, Form %41, with the Interpal Revenue Service. At the

same time, defendant THOMPSON told his bookkeeping, accounting

f and other office personnel not to provide any annual wage

statements, Forms W-2Z, to the emplovees of CENCAL to account for

the compensation paid to those employees, nor to provide Forms W-

HE Eo the Internal Revenus Service.

15. Om or about October 11, 2000, defendant THOMPSOM had a
second "all hands" meeting for the employees of CENCAL., At the
October 1lth meeting, defendant THOMPSON repeated that he would
not with-held federal taxes from the compensation paild to the
employees nor file the Employers' Quarterly Tax Returns.
Defendant THOMPSON advised the employees that the compensatien
which they recelwved was not "income® within the meaning of the

internal revenue laws, and that they 4id not have to pay taxes on

Hit. Defendant THOMPSCN outlined in detail his reascons for not

withholding federal taxes from the employees.
1é. Defendant JOSEPH BANISTER attended the Octeober 11, 2000
"all hands" meeting and participated in the discussion.

Defendant THOMPSOM introduced defendant BANISTER as a certified

2
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public accountant that defendant THOMPSON had known since 1999,

(2]

2 || and that defendant BANISTER was a former Special Agent with the

1|l Internal Revenue Service.

4 Nefendant BANISTER advised the emplcyees that he was a
5l certified public accountant and former Special Agent with the
s b criminal Investigation Division of the Internal Revenue Service.

7| pefendant BANISTER was present during defendant THOMPSON'S

8 | extended explanation of defendant THOMPSCN'S position on the tax
5| issuee to the employees. At the end of defendant TEOMPSON's

10' presentation, defendant BANISTER outlined for the employees the
11 | nature of the research he had dene on the tax iggues, and advised

12 | the CENCAL employees about the circumstances leading up to the

13| end of his employment with the Internal Revenue Service.

14 | pefendant BANISTER told the employees that he could not find any
15| authority in his research which egtablished that people such as
15“ the employees had to pay federal income taxes on the wages which
17 || they made at CENCAL. Defendant BRNISTER advised the employees

18 | that defendant THOMPSON was an honorable man who would not lie to
19| them.

20 17. Beginning in July of 2000, and continuing through at
21 Il Least December 31, 2002, no income taxes, FICA taxes Or Medicare
o || taxes were withheld from the compensatien paid to employees of

23 |t CENCAL, nor were these taxes collected, accounted for and paid

24 [| over to the United States Treasury.

25 18. Beginning in July of 2000, and continuing through at

26 | least January 15, 2003, no U.S5. Employers' Cuarterly Tax Returns,
27| Form 541, were filed with the Internal Revenue Service accounting

28 | for compensation paid to the employees of CENCAL during the

B
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pericd between July 1, 2000, and December 31, 2002.
Th s ITndivi il

1. 0Op or about January 31, 2000, defendant JOSEFH BANISTER |
prepared an Amended U.S. Individual Income Tax Returm, Form
1040%, for defendant WALTER A. THOMPSON and Thowpson's wife for
the tax year ending December 31, 19%8. The amended tax return
eliminated all of the adjusted gross income, itemized deductions,
exemptions, and taxes which defendant THOMPSON had reported Lo
the Internal Revenue Service when defendant TEOMPSON originally
had filed the 1598 tax return.

20, Defendant THOMPSON originally had reported that in
1998, he and his wife had adjusted gross income of 566,152,
itemized deducticne of 514,141, taxable income of 541,251, and
total taxes due and owing of $15,582. The amended return for
1598 prepared by defendant BANISTER reduced all those amounts to
s0. At the time, defendant THOMFSON owed a huge tax bill to the
Internal Revenue Service for the 1958 tax year. The amended
return would have eliminated the tax liability in its entirety.

=1. Opn or about February 7, 2000, defendant WALTER A.
THOMPSON =igned and filed with the Internal Revenue Service the
amended U.S. Individual Income Tax Return, Form 1040X, for
himeelf and his wife for the tax year ending December 31, 1998,
which defendant JOSEPH BANISTER had prepared.

a5  0on or about Februazry 2%, 2000, defencant JOSEPH
BANISTER prepared an Amended U.5. Individual Income Tax Return,
Form 1040%, for defendant WALTER A. THOMPSON and Thompson's wife
for the tax year ending December 31, 13%6. The amended tax

return eliminated all of the adjusted gross income, itemized

9
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;;FdEdUEtiﬂnE. exemptions, and taxes which defendant THOMPSON had
S 2l reported to the Internal Revenue Service when defendant THOMEPSON

originally had filed the 1996 tax return.

_'\H\-\

4 23. Defendant THOMPSON originally had reported that in

51 1996, he and his wife had adjusted gross income of 5102,076,

6 | itemized deductions of $15,11%, taxable income of $76,757, and
7|l total taxes due and owing of 526,942, The amended return for

B 1998 prepared by defendant BRAMNISTER reduced all those amounkts to

9|l 20, and sought a tax refund of %$28,161.

10 24. On or about March 16, 2000, defendant WALTER A. THOMPSON
11” signed and filed with the Internal Revenue Service an Amended

12|| U.8. Individual Income Tax Return, Form 1040X, for himself and

13 || his wife for the tax year ending December 31, 15%6, which

14 || defendant JOSEPH BANISTER had prepared.

15 25. On or about February 25, 2000, delendant JOSEPH BANISTEER
16 || prepared an Amended U.5. Individual Income Tax Eeturn, Form

17| 1040X, for defendant WALTER A. THOMPSCN and Thompson's wife for
18 || the ta¥ year ending December 31, 1%%7. The amended tax return

15 || eliminated all of the adjusted gross income, itemized deductions,
20| exemptione, and taxes which defendant THOMPSOMN had reported to
21| the Internal Revenue Service when defendant THOMPSON originmally
22 | had filed the 1997 tax retuzn.

23 26. Defendant THOMPSON criginally had reported that in

24 || 19597, he and his wife had adjusted grcss income of $136,476,

25 || itemized deductione of 514,581, taxable income of %$111,255, and
26 || total taxes due and owing of $38,098. The amended return for

27| 1997 prepared by defendant BANISTER reduced all those amounts to

28 50, and sought a fax refund of 539,711.

10
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»7. {n or about March 1, 2000, defendant WALTEE A.

THOMESON signed and £iled with the Internal Revenue Service an
3 | Amended U.5. Individual Income Tax Return, Form 1040X, for

I himself and his wife for the tax Year ending December 31, 1987,

m o

which defendant JOSEPH BANISTER had prepared.
EI 28. A= a result of the foregoing, defendants BANISTER and
?I TIOMPSON defrauded the United States in the amcunt of approx-
g || imately 583,454 with regard to the amended individual income CaX
9l returns of defendant TROMPSON for the tax years ending December
10 31, 1996, 1597 and 1958,
11 2 Az a result of the fnregﬁing, defendants BANISTER and
12 | THOMPSON defrauded the United states in the amount of approx-
13 | imately $176,215 with regard to the income taxes, FICA taxes and
14 || Medicare taxes which should have been daducted, collected,
15| accounted for and paid over to the United States Treasury through
16§ the Internal Revenue Service from the wages and salaries of the
17 | employees of CENCAL betweean July 1, 2000 and December 31, 2002.
18 30, The total tax loss from both objectives of the

19 | conspiracy was approximately £250 ,669.

20 VII. OVERT ACTS
21 1 In furtherance of the conspiracy, and to effact the object

safl thereof, the following overt acts were committed in the Eastern
53 || pistrict of California and elsewhere:

24 31. on or about January 11, 2000, defendant WALTER A.

~c | TyoMPSON sent an email teo defendant JOSEFH BANISTER advising

2¢ | defendant BANISTER that defendant THOMPSON had acquired copies of
27| defendant THOMPSON's 1996, 1297 and 1958 tax returns from his

28 | preparer, and Was sending them to defendant BANISTER wvia UPS.

|l
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4 32. ©On or about January 11, 2000, defendant JOSERH BANISTER

sent an email to defendant WALTER A. THOMESON advising defendant
THOMESON that defendant BANISTER had just about finished
preparing defendant THOMPSON'S amended individual income tax
return, Form 1040X, for the 1558 tax year.

3. ©On or absut January 31, 2000, 1in the State and Eastern
pistrict of California, defendant JOSEPH BANISTER prepared an
amended U.S. Individual Income Tax Return, Form 1040X, of
raxpayers WALTER and Denise THOMPSON £or the period ending
December 31, 1998.

34. On or about February 25, 2000, in the State and Eastern
District of california, defendant JOSEPH BANISTER prepared an
amended U.5. Individual Income Tax Return, Form 1040X, of
taxpayers WALTER and Denise THOMPSON for the pericd ending
December 31, 1937,

15. On or about February 29, 2000, in the State and Eastern
District of california, defendant JOSEPH BANISTER prepared an
amended U.S. Individual Income Tax Return, Form 1040X, of
taxpayers WALTER and Denise THOMPSON for the period ending
December 31, 1956.

16. ©On or about February 7, 2000, in the State and Eastern
nistriet of california, defendant WALTER A. THOMPSON made and
subscribed an Amended U.5. Individual Income TaX Return, Form
1040X, for the calendar year ending December 31, 195B.

37. O©On or about February 7, 2000, in the State and Eagtern
District of California, defendant WALTER A. THOMPSON filed an
amended U.5. Individual Income Tax Return, Form 1040X, for the

calendar year ending December 31, 1338, with the Internal Revenue

12
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3g. ©On or about March 16, 2000, in the State and Eastern

pistrict of California, defendant WALTER A. THOMPSOM made and
subgcribed an Amended U.S. Individual Income Tax Return, Form
1040X, for the calendar yvear ending December 31, 13%5&.

3%, ©On or about March 16, 2000, in the S5tate and Eastern
District of California, defendant WALTER A. THOMPSOM filed an
Amended U.8. Individual Iacome Tax Return, Porm 1040X, for the
calendar year ending December 31, 1996, with the Internal Ravenue
Service.

40¢. On or about March 21, 2000, in the State and Eastern
Distriet of California, defendant WALTER A. THOMPSCON made and
subscribed an Amended U.8. Individual Income Tax Return, Form
1040¥, for the calendar year ending December 31, 1997.

41. ©On or about March 21, 2000, in the State and Eastern
District of California, defendant WALTER A. THOMPSON filed an
Amended U.S. Individual Income Tax Return, Form 1040X, for the
calendar year ending December 31, 1%97, with the Internal Revenus
Service.

42. On or about April 30, 2000, in the State and Eastern
Digtrick of California, defendant JOSEPH BANISTEER sent a letter
to the Chief, Collection Branch, Internal Revenue Service Center
at Fresno, California, regarding the disallowance of defendant
WALTEE A. THOMPSCN's Amended U.S. Individual Income Tax Rekurn
for the calendar yvear ending December 31, 1998,

43. On or about May 25, 2000, in the State and Eastern
Digtrict of California, defendant JOSEPH BANISTER sent a letter

to the Director of Customer Service, Internal Revenue Service

13
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center at Fresno, california, regarding the disallowance of
defendant WALTER A. THOMPEON's Amended U.S5. Individual Income Tax

peturn for the calendar year ending December 31, 1536,

44. On or about May 25, 2000, in the State and Eastern

pistrict of california, defendant JOSEFH GANISTER sent a letter

2
3
4
5
&

2 Il center at Fresnc, Califoernia, regarding the disallowance of

to the Director of Customer Service, Internal Revenue Service

g | defendant WALTER A. THOMPSON'S amended U.S. Individual Income Tax
g || peturn for the calendar vear ending December 31, 1338.
10 45. ©Om or about July 21, 2000, defendant WALTER A. THOMPSOH
11 | esnducted an *all hands"™ meeting for all the employees of CENCAL.
12 46. On or about July 21, 2000, defendant WALTER A. THOMPSON
13 1| instructed the employees of CENCAL that he would no longer with-
14 | hold federal income and employment taxes from their pay.
151 47. oOn or about July 1, 2000, defendant WALTER A. THOMPSON
16 | instructed the wockkeeping, accounting and other office employees

17| of CENCAL to mot wirthhold federal income taxss, FICA taxeg and

18 | Medicare taxes from the pay af the employees of CENCAL.

19 48. oOn or about July 1, 2000, dafendant WALTER A. THOMPSCHN

ag il ingtructed the nookkeeping, accounting and other office employees
51 || of CENCAL to mot provide year ending wage and income statements,

22 | Forme W-2, to the employees of CENMCAL to account for the wages

23| and salary paid to the employees by CENCAL.

24 49. On or about July 1, 2000, defendant WALTER A. THOMPSOH

25|instructed the bookkeeping, accounting and other offica employees
26 | of CENCAL to not provide year ending wage and income statements,

ETI Forms W-2, to the Internal Revenue Service to account for the

28 | wages and salary paid to the employees by CENCAL.

14
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.fifr 50. On or about August 22, 2000, defendant JOSEFH BANISTER
"2 sent an emall to defendant WALTER A. THOMPSON regarding the
i)l disallowance of defendant THOMPSON's claim for refund filed with
4| regard to the 1537 tax year.
5 §1. On or about August 22, 2000, defendant WALTER A.
6 || THOMPSON sant an email to defendant JOSEPH BANISTER giving
7| defendant BANISTER instructions regarding what to say to the
B || Internal Revenue Service regarding defendant THOMPSON's claim for
9 refund fer the 1997 tax year.
10 52. On or about August 27, 2000, defendant JOSEPH BANISTER
11§ sent a letter to the Chief, Automated Collection Branch of the
12 || ITnternal Revenue Service Center at Fresno, Callfornia, regarding
13§ a due process hearing for defendant WALTER A. THOMPSOHN.
14 E3. On or about September 7, 2000, defendant WALTER A.
15 | THOMFPSON sent an email to defendant JOSEPH BRANISTER asking
16 || defendant BANISTER to review a memo which defendant THOMPSON was
17 || planning to distribute to his amployees explaining why he was not
18 | going to withhold federal taxes £rom the employees' compensation.
15 54, On ar about October 11, 2000, defendant WALTER A.
20 || THOMPSON had an "all hands®" meeting of the employees of CENCAL,
21| at which he repeated that he was not going to withhold federal
22 || taxes from their compensation.
23 E5. ©On or about October 11, 2000, defendant WALTER A.
24 || THOMPSON explained in detail to the employees of CENCAL exactly
25| why he was not geing to withhold federal taxes £rom their
26 || compensation.
<7 56. On or about October 11, 2000, defendant JOSEPH BANISTER

attended an "all hands" meeting of the employees of CENCAL in

15
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Redding, California, at which time defendant BANISTER advised the

2 || employees that he was a certified public accountant and former

1|l special Agent with the Criminal Investigation Division of the

4| Internal Revenue Service.

& 57. ©On or about Octeber 11, 2000, defendant JOSEPHE BRNISTER

E“ was an active participant in the discussion about why defendant

| YALTER A. THOMPSON, dba Cencal Sales Anister was not golng to

E“1wi:hhn1d federal taxes from the compensation paid to the

9 employaes.

1ﬂ“ 8. On or apout October 11, 2000, defendant JOSEFH BANISTER
11 Il outlined for the employees the nature of the regearch he had done
12l on the tax issues, and that he could not £ind any authority im

13 | hie research which established that people such as the employees
14“ had to pay federal income taxes on the wages which they made at
15 | CENCAL.
16 5g. On or about October 11, 2000, defendant JOSEPH BANISTER
17 || advised the employees of CENCAL that defendant THOMPSON was an
18 || honorable man who weuld not lie to them.
19 Ep. On or about Octcber 15, 2000, defendant WALTER A.
=0 | THOMPSON sent an emall to defendant JOSEPH BANISTER thanking
21 || defendant BANISTER for his participatien in the October 11th
22 | meeting.
23 211 in violatieon of Title 18, United States Code, Section
24 ¢ 371.
EEIM; [18 U.5.C. § 287 - Filing False Claim with United

States]
28
The Grand Jury further charges: T HA T
° WALTER A. THOMPSON,
2B
16
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defendant herein, on or about March 16, 2000, in the County of
shasta, State and Bastern District of California, did make and
present to the United States Treasury a claim against the United
States for payment, which he knew to be false, fictitious and
fraudulent, by preparing and causing toc be prepared an Amended
U.5. Individual Income Tax Return, Form 1040X, for the calendar
year ending December 31, 15396, which was presented to the United

States Treasury Department, through the Internal Revenue Service,

wherein he claimed a refund in taxes in the amount of 328,181,
knowing such claim to be false, fictitious and fraudulent, all in
violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sectlon 2B87.
COUNT THREE: [18 U.5.C. § 287 - Filing False Claim with United
Skates]
The Grand Jury further charges: THAT
WALTER A. THOMPSON,
defendant herein, on or about March 21, 2000, in the County of
Shasta, State and Bastern District of califozrnia, did make and
present to the United States Treasury a claim against the United
states for payment, which he knew to be false, Fictitious and
fraudulent, by preparing and causing to be prepared a U.S.
tndividual Income Tax Return, Form 1040X, for the calendar Yyear
ending December 31, 1597, which was presented to the United
States Treasury Department, through the Internal Revenue Bervice,
wherein he claimed a refund in taxes in the amount of 539,711,
knowing such claim te be false, fictlitious and fraudulent, all in

violatien of Title 18, United States Code, cection 287.
I
I

17
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. f coumT _poUR: [26 U.S.C. § 7206(1) - Willfully Filing False Tax
Returns)
2
3 The Grand Jury further charges: THAT
: 4 WALTER A. THOMPSON,
c | defendant herein, on or about February 7, 2000, in the County of
| shasta, Eastern District of California, did willfully make and
7l gubseribe an Amended V.2, Individual Incomé Tax Return, Form

all 1040%, Zor the calendar vear ending December 31, 19%8, which was
o | verified by a written statement that it was made under penalties

10 || of perjury and was filed with the Internal Rewvenue Service, which

11H gaid amended individual income tax return he did not nelieve to

12 | be true and correct as to every material matter in that saild

13 | return reported 50 in adiusted gross income on 1ine 1, 50 taxable
14 | income on line 5, and 50 tax dus on lines & and 10, whereas, &as
15| he then and there well knew and believad, he received adjusted

16 || gross income Of approximately 566,192, and had taxable income of
17 | approeximately $41,231, and taxes due and owing of approximately

18 || $15,582,

19 21l in violation of Title 26, United states Code, Section
20 7206(1).

21 T FIVE: [26 U.5.C. § 7206(2) - Willfully Aiding and

- Agsisting the Filing of False Tax Returns]

213 The Grand Jury further charges: T HAT

24! JOSEPH BANISTER,

25 | defendant herein, on or about February 28, 2000, in the State and
EEI Eastern District of California, did willfully aid and assist im,
27 | and procura, counsel and advise the preparaticn and presentation

EEI to the Internal Revenue Service of an Amended U.S. Individuzal

18
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Income Tax Return, Form 1040X, of taxpayers WALTER and Denise
THOMPSON for the period ending December 31, 1936, which was false
and fraudulent as to a material matter in that it representec
that adjusted gross income received by taxpayers WALTER and

Denise THOMPSON was %0, and that taxable income and taxes dues and

nuwing both were 50, whereas as the defendant then and there well

knew and believed, the total amount of adjusted gross income,
taxable income and tax due and owing were substantially in excess
theraof,

A1l in violation of Title 26, United States Code, Section
T7206(2) .
COUNT SIX: [26 U.S.C. § 7206(2) - Willfully Aiding and

Asgisting the Filing of False Tax Returns!
The Grand Jury further charges: THAT
JOSEPH BRMNIETER,

defendant herein, om or about February 29, 2000, in the State and
Eastern District of California, did willfully aid and assist in,
and procure, counsel and advise the preparation and presentation
Htu the Internal Revenue Service of an Amended U.S. Individual
Income Tax Return, Form 1040X, of taxpayers WALTER and Denise
THOMPSON for the periocd ending December 31, 19%7, which was false
and fraudulent as to a material matter in that it represented
that adjusted gross income received by taxpayers WALTER and
| Denize THOMPSON was 50, and that taxable income and taxes due and

owing both were 50, whereas as the defendant then and there well

knew and believed, the total amount of adjusted gross income,
H raxable income and tax due and owing were substantially in excess
therezof,

19
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1 All in violation of Title 26, United States Code, Section
2 7T2081(2}) .
COUNT ' [26 U.5.C. § 7206(2) - Willfully Aiding and
3 Assisting the Filing of False Tax Returns]
al
The Grand Jury further charges: T HA T
5
JOSEPH BRMISTER,
&
Hdefen&ant herein, on or about January 31, 2000, in the State and
7
Eastern District of Califernia, did willfully aid and agsist in,
8
and procure, counsel and adviee the preparation and presentation
]
to the Internal Revenue Service of an Amended U.S. Individual
10
Income Tax Return, Form 1040X, of taxpayers WALTER and Denise
11
THOMPSON for the period ending December 31, 1998, which was false
12
and fraudulent as to a material matter in that it represented
e
Fthat adjusted gross income received by taxpayers WALTER and
14
Denise THOMPSON was 50, and that taxable income and taxes due and
15
owing both were 50, whereas as the defendant then and there well
16
knew and believed, the total amount of adjusted gross income,
17
I:axabla income and tax due and owing were substantially in excess
18
theraof,
19
A11 in viclation of Title 26, United States Code, Section
20
7206(2) .
- 1
| couNT EIGHT: [26 U.S.C. § 7202 - Willful Failure to Withhold and
22 Pay Taxes]
23
The Grand Jury further charges: T HA T
24
WALTER A. THOMPSOHN,
25
defendant herein, on or about Cctober 15, 2000, in the County of
25
Shasta, State and Eastern District of Califormia, who condugted a
27 .
businesg as a sole proprietorship under the name and style of
28

20




3“

R

m

o
1o
|
12
13
14
15
16
17
1H

19

21

22
23
Z4
25
26
27

28

Cencal Sales, with its principal place of business in Redding,
California, d4id willfully fail to truthfully deduct, collect,
account for, and pay over to the Internal Revenue Service those
federal income taxes and Federal Imsurance Contributions Act
(FICAR) and Medicare taxes due and owing to the United States of
America for the fiscal guarter ending September 30, 2000, in the
amount of approximately $14,965.950,

All in vieclation of Title 26, United States Code, Section
7202,
COUNT NINE: [26 U.S.C. § 7202 - Wiliful Failure to Withhold and

Pay Taxes]
The Grand Jurv Iurther cherges: T HA T
WALTER A. THOMPSOM,

defendant herein, on or about January 15, 2001, in the County of
Shasta, State and Bastern District of California, who conducted a
business as a scle proprietorship under the name and style of
Cencal Sales, with ilte prineipal place of business in Redding,
California, did willfully fail to truthfully deduct, collect,
account for, and pay over to the Internal Revenue Service those
federal income taxes and Federal Insurance Contributicms Act
(FICA) and Medicare taxes due and owing to the United States of
America for the figcal quarter ending December 31, 2000, in the
amount of approximately 520,%30.77,

211 in wvioclation of Titlea 26, United States Code, Section
7203.
o
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O TEN: [26 U.S.C. § 7202 - Willful Failure to Withheld and
Pay Taxes]
The Grand Jury further charges: THAT
WALTER A. THOMPSOM,
ndef:nﬂant herein, on or about April 15, 2001, in the County of
Shasta, State and Eastern Districkt of california, who conducted a
business as a sole proprietorship under the name and style of
cencal Sales, with its principal place of business in Redding,
Ccalifornia, did willfully fail to truthfully deduct, collect,
account for, and pay over to the Internal Revenue Service those
federal income taxes and Federal Insurance Contributicns Act
’fFICH] and Medicare taxes due and owing to the United States of
america for the fiscal gquarter ending March 31, 2001, in the

amount of approximately $20,378.04,

! 211 in wioclatien of Title 26, United States Code, Section
T202.
COUNT ELEVEN: [26 U.S5.C. § 7202 - Willful Failure to Withheld

and Pay Taxes]

The Grand Jury further charges: T H A T
WALTER A. THOMPSOMN,

defandant herein, on or about July 15, 2001, in the County of

Shasta, State and Eastern Distriet of California, who conducted a
business as a sole proprietcrship under the name and style of
Cencal Sales, with its principal place of business in Redding,
california, did willfully fail to truthfully deduct, callect,
asccount for, and pay over to the Internal Revenue Service those
federal income taxes and Federal Insurance Centributions Act

{FICA] and Medicare taxes due and owing to the United States of

I
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America for the fiscal guarter ending June 30, 2001, in the
amount of approximately $516,724.61,

All in wviolation of Title 26, United States Code, Sectiocn
7202,
COUNT TWELVE: [26 U.85.C. § 7202 - Willful Failure to Withheld

and Pay Taxes]
The Grand Jury further charges: T HA T
WALTER A. THOMPSON,

defendant herein, on or about October 15, 2001, in the County of
Shasta, State and Eastern District of Califeornia, who conducted a
business ag a scle proprietcrship under the name and style of
Cencal Sales, with its principal place of business in Redding,
California, did willfully fail to truthfully deduct, collect,
account for and pay over to the Internal Revenue Service those
federal income taxes and Federal Insurance Contributions Act
(FICA) and Medicare taxes due and owing to the United States of
America for the fiscal guarter ending September 30, 2001, in the
amount of approximately 517,B898.9%6,

All in wviolaticn of Title 26, United States Code, Sectien
T202.
COUNT TEIRTEEN: [26 U.S.C. § 7202 - Willful Failure to Withhold

and Pay Taxes]
The Grand Jury further charges: T HEA T
WALTER A. THOMPSON,

defendant herein, on eor about January 15, 2002, in the Couaty of
Ehagta, State and Eastern District of California, whe conducted a
business as a sole proprietoreship under the name and styvle of

Cencal Sales, with its principal place cof bueiness in Redding,

23
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fCaliEnrnia, did willfully fail to truthfully deduct, collect,

account for and pay over to the Internal Revenue Service those
federal income taxes and Federal Insurance Contributions Act
(FICA) and Medicare taxes due and owing to the United States of
America for the fiscal guarter ending December 31, 2001, in the
amount of approximately 512,857.35,

all in viclation of Title 26, United States Code, Sectlon
T202.
COUNT FOURTEEN: [26 U.5.C. § 7202 - Williul Fallure t¢ Withheld

and Pay Taxes]
The Grand Jury further charges: T HA T
WALTER A. THOMPSON,

defendant herein, on or about April 15, 2002, in the County of
Shasta, State and Eastern District of California, who conducted a
business as a sole proprietorship under the name and stvle of
cencal Sales, with its principal place of business in Redding,
california, did willfully fail to truthfully deduct, cellect,

account for and pay over to the Internal Revenue Service those

19 | federal income taxes and Federal Insurance Contributions Act
20 (FICcA! and Medicare taxes due and owing te the Uaited States of
21 | America for the fiscal quarter ending March 31, 20902, in the
EEI amount of approximately $16,7B8.30,
23 211 in violation of Title 26, United States Code, Section
24 || 7202.
25 || QOUNT FIFTEEN: [26 U.5.C. § 7202 - Willful Failure to Withhold
and Pay Taxes]
26
27 The @rand Jury further charges: T HA T
Z8 WALTER A, THOMPSOWN,
24
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defendant herein, on or about July 15, 2002, in the County of
Shasta, State and Eastern District of California, who conducted a
business as a sole proprietorship under the name and style of
Cencal Sales, with its principal place of business in Redding,
California, did willfully f£ail to truthfully deduct, collect,
account for and pay over to the Internal Revenue Service those
federal income taxes and Federal Insurance Contributions Act
{FICA) and Medicare taxes due and owing to the United States of
America for the fiscal guarter ending June 30, 2002, in the
amount of approximately $1€,902.17,

All in violation of Title 26, United States Code, Section
202,
COUNT SIXTEEN: [26 U.S.C. § 7202 - Willful Failure to Withheold

and Pay Taxes]
The Grand Jury further charges: T H A T
WALTER A. THOMPSON,

defendant herein, on or about October 15, .2002, in the County of
Shagta, State and Eastern District of California, who conducted a
buginess as a sole proprietorship under the name and style of
Cencal Sales, with its prineipal place of business in Redding,
California, did willfully fail teo truthfully deduct, collect,
account for and pay over to the Internal Revenue Service those
federal income taxes and Federal Insurance Contributions Act
(FICA)] and Medicare taxes due and owing to the United States of
tmarica for the fiscal guarter ending September 30, 200Z, in the
amount of approximately $16,850.52,

Rll in wviolation of Title 26, United States Code, Section

T20z2.
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1 N: [26 U.5.C. § 7202 - Willful Failure teo Withhold
and Fay Taxes]

The Grand Jury further charges: T H AT

WALTER A. THOMPSOHN,

defendant herein, on or about January 15, 2003, in the County of
Shasta, State and Eastern pigtrict of califernia, whe conducted a
business as a sole proprietership under +he nmame and style of
~encal Sales, with its principal place of business in Redding,
california, did willfully fail to eruthfully deduct, cellect,
account for and pay over to the internal Revenue Service those
Iiederal income taxes and Federal Insurance Contributions Act
ItFICﬁ] and Medicare taxes due and owing to the United States of
america for the £iscal guarter ending December 31, 2002, in the
Iamnunt of apprﬂximately £21,883.06,

11 in violatieon of Title 26, United States Code, Section
7202.

SENTENCING ALLEGRT IOHS

1. The tax loss for which defendant JOSEFH BANISTER is
responsible in Count rive is approximately 526,8533.

2. The tax loss for which defendant JOSEPH BANI STER is
responsible in Count 3ix is approximately §$38&,098.

9 The tax loss for whieh defendant JOSEFH BANISTER is

vegpongible in Count Seven ig approximately %$15,582.
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McGREGOR W. SCOTT o
United States ACttorney
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
Eastern District of California

Criminal Division

THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

o SELA LD

WALTER A. THOMPSON

INDICTMENT
VIOLATION(S): 18 U.5.C. § 371 - Conspiracy to Defraud The United
States, 18 UL5.C. § 287 - Filing False Claim with Unired Soes (2
Counts); 26 U.5.C. § 7206(1) - Willfully Filing False Tax Returns; 26
U.S5.C. § 7206(2) - Willfully Aiding and Assisting the Filing of False
Tax Returns (3 Counes);, 26 11,50, § 7202 - Willful Failure to Withhold
and Pay Taxes {10 Counts)
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